HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
January 30, 2012
1:33 p.m
1: 33: 33 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stoltze called the House Finance Comm ttee neeting
to order at 1:33 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Thomas Jr., Co-Chair
Representati ve Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Representative Ma Costello

Representati ve M ke Doogan

Representative Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e

Represent ati ve Mark Neuman

Representative Tanme W/ son

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative David Guttenberg

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Alan Austerman; Aaron Schroder, Staff,
Veterans Caucus; Chris Christensen |I1l, Associate Vice
President for State Relations, University of Al aska; Cora
Campbel | , Comm ssioner, Departnment of Fish and Gane; Kevin
Brooks, Adm nistrative Director, D vision of Adm nistrative
Servi ces, Departnment of Fish and Gane; Susan Bell,
Conmi ssi oner, Depar t ment of Commer ce, Community  and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Sar a Chanber s, Program Coor di nat or, Di vi si on of
Prof essional Licensing, Departnent of Comrerce, Community
and Economi c Devel opnent; Mark, Sansouci, Regional Liaison,
Northwest Mlitary Famlies, United States Departnment of
Def ense (DOF), Tacona.

SUMVARY

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



HB 282 M LI TARY TRAI NI NG CREDI T/ TEMP. LI CENSE
OPERATI NG BUDGET OVERVI EV\&:

Departnent of Fish and Gane
Department of Commerce, Conmunity and Econom c
Devel opnent

#hb282
1: 33: 33 PM

HOUSE BI LL NO. 282

"An Act relating to applying mlitary education,
training, and service credit to occupational I|icensing
and certain postsecondary education and enploynent
training requirenments; and providing for a tenporary
occupational license for qualified mlitary service
menbers. "

Co-Chair Thomas MOVED to ADOPT a proposed conmttee
substitute for HB 282, work draft 27-LS1116\T.

Co-Chair Stoltze OBJECTED for purpose of discussion.

AARON  SCHRODER, STAFF,  VETERANS CAUCUS, provi ded an
overview of the proposed commttee substitute. He noted
that there were five changes to the legislation, none of
whi ch affected policy:

 Page 1, line 13 - added "substantially"” to allow the
departnent nore objectivity when assessing mlitary
trai ni ng;

 Page 2, line 12 - deleted "while on active duty" to
broaden the training that could be recognized by the
depart nent;

e Page 2, line 18 - added "degree" to recognize the
degree froman accredited mlitary institution;

e Page 5, line 28 - deleted "pronulgate” and inserted
"adopt"; and

 Page 5, Section 6 - added the effective date of

Decenmber 31, 2012.

Co-Chair Stoltze WTHDREW his OBJECTION. There being NO
FURTHER OBJECTI ON, work draft 27-LS1116\T was adopt ed.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



1: 36: 13 PM

M. Shroeder explained that the goal of House Bill 282 was
to assist the transition of service nenbers from active
duty to civilian life. He said that 1,200 nenbers separated
from the arnmed services into the state of Al aska in 2010
The Departnent of Defense (DOD) listed the legislation as
one of their top priorities in 2012. He noted that the
nati onal unenploynent rate for post 9/11 veterans (age 18-
24) was just fewer than 22 percent.

M. Shroeder explained that HB 282 asked the Division of
Pr of essi onal Li censi ng, Uni versity of Al aska, and
Departnment of Labor to evaluate mlitary training and
educati on, and assign civilian «credit where it was
appropriate. He enphasized that the departnent, University
of Alaska and several licensing boards had already
i npl emented the practice. He asked for statutory backing in
recognition of the mlitary credit.

1: 39: 03 PM

Representative Costello questioned whether applicants would
have to reapply after the 180 days [granted under a
tenporary |license] and resubmt additional paperwork.

M. Shroeder deferred the question to the Departnent of
Commerce, Comrunity and Econoni c Devel opnent ( DCCED)

1: 40: 08 PM

Representative Neuman asked how mlitary qualification
woul d be approved for certification with the state.

M. Shroeder explained that the intent was to ask the DCCED
Division of Licensing or the University of Al aska or other
school institutions to look at the mlitary equival ent and
deci de conparability.

Representati ve Neuman concluded that a certificate would be
awarded if there were nerit.

1:41: 37 PM

Representative Costello reiterated her previous question.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



SARA CHAMBERS, PROGRAM COCRDI NATOR, DI VI SI ON OF
PROFESSI ONAL LI CENSI NG DEPARTMENT OF COWERCE, COVWMUNITY
AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT (via teleconference), clarified
that each program that issued a tenporary |icense could
have a slightly different process. There were thirteen
prograns that offered tenporary licenses. Ten had a board
or commi ssion to oversee the process. A tenporary |icense
could be a separate application, or could be folded into a

per manent bi annual | i cense. She clarified that t he
legislation would allow application to any tenporary
pr of essi onal license managed through the Division of
Cor por ati ons, Business and Professional Licenses, and would
apply to tenporary Ilicenses that had been authorized
through regulation. Not every program had established a
tenporary license. The legislation would require that

mlitary credit be applied to current or future authorized
|i censes.

Representative Costello wunderstood that the |legislation
woul d allow for a tenporary license for any type of |icense
i ssued by the state.

Ms. Chanbers replied that the bill would apply to any
t enporary pr of essi onal i cense aut hori zed t hr ough
regulation that was managed through the Division of
Cor porations, Business and Professional Licenses. She said
that not every program had established a tenporary l|icense
t hrough regul ation. She shared that the bill would require
that mlitary credit be applied where authorization
currently existed, or may exist in the future.

1: 44: 15 PM

MARK, SANSQUCI REGA ONAL LI Al SON, NORTHWEST M LI TARY
FAM LI ES, UNI TED STATES DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE (DOD), TACOVA
(via teleconference), testified in support. He noted the
hi gh nunmber of wunenployed veterans: one mllion in 2011.
The post 9/11 wunenploynent rate was 13.3 percent. The
current unenploynent rate for age 18-24 veterans was 21.9
percent. He observed that DOD had asked states to give
separating service nenbers credit so that they were not
held back from finding enploynent or finishing a degree

Legislative |eaders were asked to establish policies that
ensure separating service nenbers did not have to repeat
requi renents conpleted during their mlitary career, and
would allow them to obtain academic <credit or an
occupational |icense. Four states had enacted new laws to

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



help grant that veterans received credit toward |icensing
and/or academ cs. In 2012, there were already 27 bills in
15 other states that resenbled HB 282.

M. Sansouci observed that DOD only sought credit where
credit was due. He pointed out that citizens had already
paid for veterans' training within DOD schools and for
mlitary experience through federal tax dollars. Ganting
veterans credit would also help open school slots to other
students. The DOD had worked wth the United States
Departnent of Labor to link service transcripts of mlitary
occupati ons Wi th civil private sect or i censure
requi renents and had asked state regulatory authorities in
pilot states (Washington, Illinois and Maryland) to review
select mlitary occupations to determine if mlitary
experience was sufficient to be wuseful in rendering
licensure credit. Al aska houses thousands of veterans and
remained a retirement choice for nmany; 1,286 mlitary
separated back to Alaska in 2010. In 2011, the state of
Washi ngton passed two bills: one for nedical occupations
and one for non-nedical occupations. House Bill 282 was
nodel ed after Washington's and would be considered best
practice | egislation.

1: 49: 31 PM

CHRI S CHRI STENSEN 111, ASSCClI ATE VICE PRESI DENT FOR STATE
RELATI ONS, UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA, spoke to Section 2, which
directed the university's president to adopt policies and
procedures to award credit for mlitary training,
education, and service. He noted that the university was
committed to offering quality educational experiences to
active mlitary, veterans, and their dependents.

M. Christensen observed that G Jobs Magazi ne, which was a
magazi ne and web portal that existed specifically to serve
people who were transitioning from the nmilitary back to
civilian 1life, had designated both the University of
Al aska, Anchorage (UAA) and the University of Al aska,
Fai rbanks (UAF) as “mlitary friendly schools”. Only 15
percent of all the colleges, universities, and vocational
schools in the country had received the designation, which
he felt was a sad conmentary on the |ower 48, and one of
t he reasons the DOD has pushed | egi sl ation.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



Co-Chair Stoltze interjected that there had been a general
association [between the state of Alaska and the mlitary]
for a decade.

M. Chri st ensen observed t hat t he web port al
“gui det oonl i neschools.com” which billed itself as the nost
conprehensive authority on distance education and online
| earning, released its 2012 rankings of the nost mlitary-
friendly online colleges in the country. The University of
Al aska was ranked five of the nultitude of schools. The

University was proud of its ranking and felt that
| egi slators should also be proud as the entity that nmade
t hat rating possi bl e t hr ough fundi ng deci si ons.
M. Christensen spoke to transfer of «credit, as an

inmportant issue. He noted that the subject aroused great
passion, and mlitary transfer credit was a piece of the
bi gger issue. The board of regents had adopted a witten
policy on transfer of credit. Al'l  three canpuses had
established transfer «credit policies designed to give
maxi mum credit for courses and training taken el sewhere,
including in the mlitary. The University believed that
awardi ng appropriate credit for nmilitary training was one
of the wuniversity's responsibilities, and another way it
could show commtnent to recruit and retain mlitary and
vet eran students.

M . Christensen felt t hat there were a |lot of
m sconceptions about what the university actually did for
mlitary students. He nmintained that there was a great
deal of wuniformty in the system Al three canpuses
transfer credit based on recommendations made by “ACE,”
which was the acronym for the Anerican Council of
Education. He explained that ACE had had an agreenent wth
the defense departnent since the end of WANI to review
mlitary training and experience for the award of
equi valent college credits. The Anmerican Council of
Education's recomendati ons on equivalent college credits
were utilized by thousands of universities across the
country. All three Al askan canpuses had witten agreenents
with DOD to follow the ACE guidelines.

1:54: 08 PM

M. Christensen observed that all three canpuses were al so
menbers of the Service Menbers Qpportunity Colleges (SOC)
consortium which is a consortium of over 1,900 colleges

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



and universities that enrol | active duty mlitary,
veterans, and dependents in special degree programs, both
on-canpus and through distance |earning. The purpose of SOC
was to let the mlitary get degrees, rather than just
accunul ate credits as they noved from base to base. The
University of Alaska signed witten agreenents to follow
specific guidelines in accepting mlitary transfer of
credit from nenber schools and to |imt the nunber of
credits mlitary students had to earn at UA, in order to
get a UA degree. For exanple, mlitary students working on
a SOC degree at UAA only needed 3 UAA credits to earn the
degree; UAA would take all the rest of the credits from
ot her schools in the SOC consortium

1:56: 26 PM

M. Christensen explained that the university was currently
accepting approximately 51 credits per student from those
mlitary students who attended regionally accredited
mlitary institutions such as: service academes, the
Community College of the Air Force, the Defense Language
Institute and ot hers.

M. Christensen pointed out that a mlitary student could
use approximately 30 credits of typical training for the
bachel or of energency managenent degree, which was setup
with mlitary students in mnd. Neither UAA nor UAF had any
limtation on the nunber of mlitary transfer credits.
Limtations were elimnated at UAA in the past year as part
of their continual process to review the system and naeke it
nore student-friendly.

M. Christensen observed that UAA alone accepted over
15,000 hours of mlitary transfer credit for training, for
education, and even for tinme spent in the service in 2011.
In 2011, approximately 99.5% of the students who requested
mlitary transfer credits received those credits.

M. Christensen enphasized that Al aska was w dely known to
service nenbers as a state that welconmed and appreciated
the mlitary. The university, as denonstrated by existing
credit transfer policies, reflected the state's positive
prevailing social val ues.

Representative Doogan asked if there was a recognized
appeal s process.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



M. Christensen affirnmed and stressed that mlitary credit
appeal s woul d be handled in a tinely manner.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough observed that 99 percent of mlitary
transfers were accepted. She queried if «credits were
transferred toward a degree or elective credits.

M. Christensen clarified that there were sonme of each.
Whether credits were applied as an elective or requirenent
depended on several factors.

Vice-chair Fairclough noted that it was easy to except
el ectives but nore difficult to accept credits toward
requirenents.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough asked if the university felt it could
i nplenment a policy with satisfactory evi dence.

M. Christensen affirned and indicated that they already
had such a policy in place. He pointed out that the
university's hands were tied by the witten agreenents that
had been signed w th DOD.

1: 59: 00 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze commented that it would be a shanme if UAF
accepted credits that were not transferable to UAA

M. Christensen acknowl edged the inportance of the issue
anmong legislator's constituents and asked representatives
to forward any constituent concerns so that they could be
addr essed.

Vice-chair Fairclough |ooked forward to seeing the first
di pl ona recei ved.

2:00:46 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze noted that there were several zero fisca
notes. [Co-Chair Stoltze later noted that a new fiscal note
would be forthcomng from the Departnment of Comrerce,
Communi ty and Econom ¢ Devel opnent. |

Co-Chair Thomas MOVED to report CSHB 282 (FIN) out of
Comm ttee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



CSHB 282 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Commttee with a "do
pass" recommendation and with three previously published
fiscal notes (#1, #2, and #3); and a new "forthcom ng"
fiscal note from the Departnent of Commerce, Comunity and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent.

2:01: 56 PM
AT EASE

2: 05: 08 PM
RECONVENED

A"BUDGET OVERVI EW DEPARTMENT OF FI SH AND GAMVE

2: 05: 56 PM

CORA CAMPBELL, COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME
introduced staff and provided nenbers wth PowerPoint
presentation: Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane Overvi ew,
House Finance Commttee, January 30, 2012 (copy on file).
She observed that the departnent's mssion statenent was
based upon the Alaska State Constitution (Article 8) and
Al aska Statutes (Title 16):

To protect, maintain, and inprove the fish, gane, and
aquatic plant resources of the state, and nanage their
uses and developnent in the best interest of the
econony and the well-being of the people of the state,
consistent with the sustained yield principle.

Comm ssi oner Canpbell reviewed the departnent's six core
servi ces:

* Harvest Managenent: provide opportunity to utilize
fish and wildlife resources

e Stock Assessnent : Ensure sustainability and
harvestabl e surplus of fish and wildlife resources

e Custoner Servi ce: Pr ovi de i nformati on to al |
cust oners

e Public Involvenent: Involve the public in managenent
of fish and wildlife resources

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



e State Sovereignty: Protect the state’'s sovereignty
to manage fish and wildlife resources

e Habitat Protection: Protect inportant fish and
wildlife habitat during permt and project review

2:08: 28 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze referred to issues faced by the public
when obtaining or entering drawings for permts for hunting
and fishing. He believed the departnent could inprove
public rel ations.

Conmi ssi oner Canpbell believed the departnment had worked to
inprove the draw program She said that the draw program
had been a source of frustration for the departnent. She
shared that the departnent was trying to provide a |ot of
information to a lot of Alaskans. She said that the
departnment had faced challenges in establishing an on-1line
programto be nore user friendly. She stated that she would
be interested in hearing any constituent suggestions that
had been relayed to comm ttee nenbers.

2:10: 37 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze stressed the level of conplaints and the
magni t ude of the issue.

Vice-chair Fairclough referred to a constituent unable to
participate in an on-line drawing due to a power outage
She wondered about an appeals process that people could go
through if they were unable to conply based on situations
beyond their control.

Comm ssi oner Canpbell acknow edged that the deadline fell
on a weekend in 2011, which was not optiml. She expl ained
that the departnment had considered noving the deadline to a
weekday to allow people the alternative of <calling or
visiting a fish and gane office to conplete their
application should they have difficulty getting into the
online system

Vi ce-chair Fairclough noted that there could be extenuating
circunstances due to climate that would make neeting the
application deadline difficult.

2:14:14 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



Representati ve Joule  wondered about t he i ssue of
subsi stence was being handled in the relationship between
t he departnent and the federal governnent.

Comm ssi oner Campbel | t hought t hat there was sone
inefficiency and confusion that stemmed from the two sets
of regulations. She felt that the federal system had been
considered as tenporary, but as tine has gone on that was
not the case. She said that the departnent had worked to
make the two managenent systens work for users.

Representative Joule wondered why the federal regulations
had been consi dered tenporary.

Comm ssi oner Canpbel|l replied that nmany thought the federal
governnent regulations would be tenporary while the state
found a way to cone into conpliance wth the Al aska
National Interest Lands Conservation Act (ANILCA). She
acknow edged that it had been 20 years since the
"tenporary" program had cone into effect. She reiterated
that the departnment worked to nmake the two systens as user
friendly as possible. She noted that it was difficult to
work with the two different regul atory systens.

2:18: 12 PM

Comm ssi oner Canpbel | reviewed the departnment's structure:
Under the Ofice of the Conm ssioner:

Board Support Section

D vi sion of Commercial Fisheries

Di vision of Sport Fish

Division of WIldlife Conservation
Di vi si on of Habitat

D vi si on of Subsi stence

D vision of Admi nistrative Services

Comm ssi oner Canpbel|l added that the Exxon Valdez QI Spill
and the Commercial Fisheries Entry Conm ssion were attached
to the departnent for admnistrative purposes. She noted
the map on page 6, which detailed where the departnent
of fices were | ocated around the state.

2:19: 06 PM

Representative Costello asked if the departnent would be
willing to work with the Departnent of Mtor Vehicle (DW)

House Fi nance Committee 11 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



concerning offering renewals of fishing licenses at DW
of fices.

Comm ssioner Canpbell stressed the departnment had an
interest to nake renews as easy as possible, as the revenue
from license sales was an inportant contributor to the
departnment's budget. She said that she would talk to the
Comm ssioner of Admnistration about the practicality of
t he proposal .

2:20: 03 PM

Comm ssi oner Canpbel | continued with her presentation:

Conmi ssioner’s Ofice
Conmi ssi oner Cora Canpbel |

10 permanent full tinme positions
$1, 850. 4 FY13 Operati ng Request
1% of ADF&G s Operati ng Budget

Conmi ssioner Canpbell relayed that the office was
responsi bl e for providing support and policy direction
to the departnent progranms, as well as budget and

pl anni ng coordi nati on.
Comm ssi oner Canpbel | conti nued:

Commerci al Fi sheries
Director Jeff Regnart

309 permanent full tinme positions

431 permanent part tinme/seasonal positions
$70, 456. 8 FY 13 Qperating Budget Request
34 percent of ADF&G s operating budget

Comm ssi oner Campbel | added that the division was
responsi ble for stock assessnment, research and managenent
for commercial fisheries, and sone subsistence fisheries,
as well as in charge of permtting for aquaculture projects
t hroughout the state.

2:21:01 PM

Comm ssi oner Canpbel | conti nued:

Sport Fish

House Fi nance Committee 12 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



Director Charlie Swanton

218 permanent full tinme positions

184 permanent part tine/seasonal positions
$49, 738.5 FY13 (Qperati ng Request

24 percent of ADF&G s Operating Budget

Comm ssi oner Campbel | noted that the division was
responsi bl e for managenent and stock assessnent for sport
fisheries, as well as nost personal use fisheries. She

shared that the division provided additional recreationa
opportunities through production of hatchery fish and was
responsi ble for protecting and inproving public access to
recreational fisheries resources. The division's funding
cane primarily fromsale of fishing |licenses and stanps, as
well as from federal excise taxes.

Comm ssi oner Canpbel | conti nued:

Wl dlife Conservation
Acting Director Doug Vincent-Lang

191 permanent full tinme positions

60 permanent part tine/seasonal enpl oyees
$44, 483. 3 FY13 Qperating Request

21% of ADF&G s Operati ng Budget

Comm ssi oner Campbel | shared that the division was
responsi ble for managenent of wldlife and wldlife stock
assessments. She said that the division also provided
hunter safety education and participated in the Board of
Gane process, as well as mnmmnaged the state's wldlife
refuges, critical habitat areas and wildlife sanctuari es.

Comm ssi oner Canpbel | highlighted the smaller divisions:

Subsi st ence
Di rector Hazel Nel son

24 permanent full time positions

14 permanent part tine/seasonal positions
$7,442.8 FY13 Qperating Request

4 percent ADF&G s Operating Budget

Comm ssioner Canpbell stated that the division was a
research division that was primarily responsible for the
anount, quantity and usage of subsistence resources by
Al askan's.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



2:22:49 PM

Comm ssi oner Canpbel | conti nued:

Habi t at
Di rector Randy Bates

49 permanent full tinme positions

2 permanent part tine/seasonal positions
$6, 767. 1 FY13 Qperating Request

3 percent of ADFG s Budget

Comm ssi oner Canpbel| added that the division was primarily
a permtting division that was responsible for review ng
devel opnent projects, authorized by other agencies, for
conpatibility for protection of fish and wildlife habitat.

Adm ni strative Services
Di rector Kevin Brooks

70 permanent full tine positions

11 permanent part tinme/seasonal positions
$12,431.0 FY13 Qperati ng Request

$7,138.8 FY13 Facility Rel ated Conponents
9 percent of ADF&G s Operating Budget

Comm ssi oner Canpbell stated that the division adm nistered
the fish and game |icensing program and provided overall
| ogi stical support.

Boards Support Section
Executive Director Mnica Wllard

6 permanent full time positions

5 permanent part tine/seasonal positions
$2,106. 8 FY13 Operati ng Request

1 percent of ADF&G s Operating Budget

Comm ssioner Canpbell explained that the section was
i mportant for public involvenent. She said that the section
provi ded support for the activities for the Board of Fish
and the Board of Gane, as well as the 82 |ocal advisory
conmi tt ees.

2:24: 18 PM

House Fi nance Committee 14 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



Comm ssi oner Canpbel|l spoke to the departnent's independent
agenci es:

Commerci al Fisheries Entry Conm ssion
Bruce Twom ey, Chairnman

28 permanent full time positions

2 permanent part tinme/seasonal positions
$4,291. 3 FY13 Qperating Request

2 percent of ADF&G s Operating Budget

Exxon Valdez Q| Spill Trustee Counci
El i se Hsieh, Executive Director

6 permanent full time positions
$2,602. 7 FY13 Qperating Request
1 percent of ADF&G s Operating Budget

Comm ssi oner Canpbell noted that the agencies were a small
part of the overall budget.

Representative Gara asked if the state had reopened the
Exxon Val dez settlenment litigation in order to collect on
unexpected additi onal damages due to the disaster.

Comm ssi oner Canpbell replied that the question should be
referred to the Departnent of Law.

2:26: 07 PM

Comm ssi oner Canpbell spoke to Slide 16, which was a pie
chart that broke down the FY 2013 budget by division and
fund source. She highlighted that the biggest funding
sources for the departnment were general funds, federal
funds and fish and gane funds. She continued to Slide 17,
whi ch charted the FY 2013 budgeted positions. She pointed
out to the commttee that the departnent had 911 full tine
positions; but 1,690 total positions, which reflected the
departments reliance on seasonal staff.

Represent ati ve Edgnon asked about 288 vacant positions that
had been el i m nat ed.

Commi ssi oner Canpbell noted that positions had been vacant
for a long tine and did not think there would be an inpact

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



on existing programs. She stated that vacancies would be
handl ed nore carefully in the future.

KEVIN  BROCKS, ADM NI STRATI VE DI RECTCR, DIVISION OF
ADM NI STRATI VE SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF FI SH AND GAME, added
that 59 total positions, vacant for at |east 11 nonths, had
been elimnated. He said that flexibility had been given to
the departnent to decide which vacancies should be
elimnated. He assured the commttee that no jobs had been
| ost and no projects were directly inpacted.

2:29:43 PM

Representati ve Edgnon understood that of the 59 positions
the majority were tenporary or seasonal

M. Brooks replied that it was 15 permanent fulltinme and
approximately 40 permanent part-time positions. He said
that the vast mpjority were seasonal part tinme positions.

Representative Neuman wondered if there were wunfilled
positions that the departnment expected funding for in the
FY 2013 budget.

M. Brooks explained the way the budget worked: if the
di vision had 100 positions, funding would be received for
94 percent of them He said that the departnent had a
vacancy factor of 6 to 10 percent built in, so position
funding through the operating budget Representative Sal non
not 100 percent. He stated that the departnent was not
requesting funding for unfilled positions.

Representati ve Neuman asked about the funding ability for a
"true up." He thought that the departnent had created a new
probl em by elimnating the positions.

M. Brooks replied that if the departnment was able to
receive federal grants sonme positions could be added. He
said that the general fund allocations for positions had
been fully allocated. He added that were there were known
federal dollars comng in the positions had all been
filled.

Representative Gara asked how nmany biol ogi st positions had
been | ost.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



M. Brooks stated that a listing could be provided to the
conmittee at a |later date.

Representative Gara stated that the state needed biol ogists

for permtting, habitat protection and federal |[eve
representation. He understood that federal |evel biologists
made a higher incone because of the <cost of [living

adjustnment (COLA). He asked what the departnment did to
conpetitively attract biol ogists.

2:34: 00 PM

M. Brooks responded that the departnment was actively
review ng the issue.

2: 34: 48 PM

Comm ssi oner Canpbell referred to departnent's issues and
chal  enges for FY 2013 listed on Slide 18:

| ssues and Chal | enges for FY 2013

The departnent's FY 2013 budget request wll address
the foll ow ng issues:

* Yukon River Chinook Sal non Fisheries

e Sout h-central Chinook Sal non Fisheries

* Susitna and Cook Inlet Sockeye Sal non Stocks

» State Sovereignty and Endangered Species |ssues
* Invasive Species - Tunicates in Witing Harbor

* New Sport Fish hatcheries in Anchorage and
Fai r banks

* Fish and Gane Fund Revenue from Li cense Sal es
* Federal Aid Funding (DJ and PR funds) for SF and
WC

e Loss of federal funds for core progranms -- $1
mllion per year (FY 2014)

Co- Chair Thomas asked about the first three bullet points.
He queried the effectiveness of bycatch resolutions passed
by the legislature. He wondered which villages had md-
water trawers that could be inpacted by the Yukon and
other river systens. He said that the state should not be
conplaining about a lack of fish if it was directly
responsi bl e for the inpact.

House Fi nance Committee 17 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



Represent ati ve Doogan asked about the abbreviations in the
second to last bullet point.

Comm ssioner Canpbell replied that DJ and PR stood for
Di ngel | -Johnson and Pittnman- Robertson, respectively, and
were federal aid funding sources. She explained that the
funds were for sport fish and wildlife conservation. She
said that the funds were generated by excise taxes from
peopl e purchasing fishing tackle, amunition, or supplies
related to sport fisheries or wldlife conservation. She
hi ghl i ghted that the funds were vari abl e.

Representati ve Doogan understood that the last two itens
wer e rel ated.

Comm ssi oner Canpbell answered that the departnment wanted
to plan for the loss of federal funds for core prograns,
approximately $1 mllion per year (FY 2014).

2:39: 56 PM

Representati ve Doogan pointed to positions that would need
to be back-filled due to declining federal dollars. He
opined that the federal government could spend nore noney
than the state coul d provide.

Representative Costello asked about i nvasi ve species
related to Salnmon Lake in Anchorage. She wondered whet her
the departnent had a conprehensive list related to invasive
speci es probl ens.

Commi ssi oner Canpbell replied that the departnent had an
i nvasi ve species program coordi nator working on the issue.
She stressed that the program was small and was short of
being a conprehensive, proactive, state-wi de approach to
i nvasive species. She referred to the marine invasive
species in Witing Harbor in Sitka. She said that the
department made a specific capital budget request in FY13
out of concern that the species could spread to other
waters if it was not eradicated. She clarified that this
was not the only invasive species issue that the departnent
had recogni zed.

Representative W/Ison asked for an update on the cost of
heating the fish hatchery in Fairbanks.

Comm ssi oner Canpbell replied that the exact nunbers on
what it was going to cost to operate the hatchery were not

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



i medi ately available. She offered to provide the nunbers
at a later date.

Co-Chair Stoltze demanded open, candid, and transparent
di al ogue between the departnent's and the conmttee to
address issues and increases in |licensing costs. He wanted
common sense, understandable and clear proposals for the
public. He said that terns |ike "balancing the books" and
"shifting sonme funds around" really nmeant the extension of
revenue bonds.

Conmi ssi oner Canpbell reported that the bonds had been
refinanced in the fall

2:44: 58 PM

M. Brooks explained that the terns on the bonds had been
reduced, not extended. He offered to provide further
det ai | s.

2:48: 12 PM

Representative Gara queried the progress on increasing fish
counting capacity on the Yukon River and what efforts the
departnment was nmking to restore commercial fisheries on
the river.

Comm ssi oner Canpbell directed attention to Slide 19, which
listed the Tanana R ver Sonar Project as a budgetary
hi ghlight. She stated that the biggest interest was to have
anot her data source between the sonar pilot station and the
sonar at Eagle. She said that data about run strength on
the Tanana woul d hel p to understand what was going on wth
the Yukon fisheries as a whole. She stated that this was
the best project that the departnment could cone up with to
answer outstanding questions about the assessnent projects
on the Yukon River. She added that in the neantine the
department was looking to provide opportunities for a
fi shery on Chum Sal non

2:51:35 PM

Representative Gara asked if there was anything that can be
done additionally to restore the King Sal non fishery on the
Yukon.

Comm ssi oner Canpbell responded that the departnent had
worked to understand the reason for the |ow runs. She felt

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



that there were a variety of contributing factors to the
probl em She asserted that until it could be concluded what
the root cause of the problem was, it was difficult to set
about restoring the runs. She stated that the departnent
was focused on approving assessnment in the area and then
woul d provide opportunity on other, nore abundant types of
sal non.

2:53: 10 PM

Co- Chair Thomas shared that the departnment was |ooking to
repeal the reciprocating license between Canadians and
Al askans. He worried that the change would put pressure on
Lynn Canal and lIcy Strait fisheries. He understood that
Canadi ans had no problem with paying for the non-resident
i cense.

Representative Doogan asked what the word "tunicate",
listed on Slide 21, neant.

Comm ssi oner Canpbell responded that a tunicate was an
i nvasive species in Witing Harbor, also referred to as
"sea vomt."

2:55:47 PM

Comm ssioner Canpbell directed attention to Slide 20 the
presentati on:

Di vi sion of Subsistence

$317.1 - Funding for Core Services

$60. 0 - Lower Kuskokwi m Caribou Harvest Study

$1,100.0 - |I/A Receipts from DNR Pipeline Corridor
Har vest Surveys

Comm ssi oner Canpbell explained that it had been recently
di scovered that the information that the division collected
was critical to the decision naking process for resource
devel opment and transportation projects.

Boar ds Support Section
$191.5 - Funding for Core Services, Boards and
Advi sory Conmmittees

Comm ssi oner Canpbell stated that the section had had a
baseline budget for mny years and had absorbed cost

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



increases, which had limted that funding for advisory
conmi ttees.

Habi tat Division

$353.5 - Title 16 and 41 Project Reviews, Permtting
Moni tori ng

$200.0 - I/ A Receipts from DNR, Ri ght-of-Way Wrk

Comm ssi oner Canpbell relayed that the division's workload
had increased in the areas of project reviews, permtting
and nmonitoring. She said that funding for the division had
been stable, but that sonme areas had | ost funding.

2:57: 33 PM

Representative Joule noted that a Board of Gane nmade a
deci sion several years ago with regard to out-of-state take
on the Central Arctic Caribou Herd. He wondered whether
data had conme in that could pronpt revisiting the issue.

Comm ssi oner Canpbell responded that she did not have a
recent update on the decision.

Representative Joule observed that the Alaska Nationa
Wldlife Refuge (ANWAR) had been nentioned on the floor. He
said that one of the issues touted in discussions about
ANWAR centered on how caribou herds had grown. He found it
unfortunate that the board's decisions did not reflect
their touted acconplishnents.

Representati ve Edgnon asked for nore information regarding
the $353.5 for Title 16 and 41 Project Reviews, Permtting,
Moni t ori ng. He asked if it pertained to expediting
backl ogged permts.

Conmi ssi oner Canpbell replied that there was a conbination
of issues due to a loss of funding. She explained that the
Habi t at Division had received sone funds from the
Departnent of Natural Resources in association with the
Al aska Coastal Managenment Program (ACWMP), which they were no
| onger receiving. She asserted that it was nore effective
for the division to be involved early on in the process
because projects could be shaped early on to mnimze
interactions or inpacts to fish and wldlife habitat.

3:01: 20 PM

House Fi nance Committee 21 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



Representative Edgnon asked if the division was absorbing
sonme of the enployees fromthe defunct ACVP.
Comm ssioner Canpbell explained that the division had
received a reinbursable service agreenment (RSA) from the
ACVMP. \When the ACMP program ended the RSA was discontinued,
but the work involved in permtting remained.

3:02: 34 PM

Representative Neuman asked about ocean zoning at the
federal |evel would affect the state.

Comm ssioner Canpbell replied that the issue had been
nebul ous; National Oceans Policy: Coastal WMrine Spati al
Pl anning could nean many things. She said that it had been
difficult to get details from the federal government about
how the program would be inplenmented here in Alaska. She
opined that the departnment had yet to receive a clear
answer from the federal governnment to any questions about
how the new policy interacted with existing federal |aw
what it nmeant to the existing federal decision mnaking
processes, and what kind of representation the state was
goi ng to have on regional planning bodi es.

3:05:26 PM

Representati ve Joul e poi nt ed out t hat Al aska' s
congressional delegation opposed Coastal Marine Spatial
Planning. He that the current practice as it related to
working in arctic waters was initiated through an executive
order from former President Bush and that the current Cbanma
Adm ni stration was building off of that. He understood that
funding for the program had yet to be considered by
congr ess.

3:07: 09 PM

Comm ssioner Canpbell reviewed FY 13 capital projects
requests listed on Slide 21:

New Projects and Initiatives

* Kenai River King Sal nbn Sonar Assessnent Program
$1,813.0 G-

e WId/Hatchery Salnon Managenent Tools; $2,500.0
CFEC Recei pts

House Fi nance Committee 22 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



e Susitna River Sockeye Salnmon Mgration; $625.0
CFEC Recei pts

» Upper Cook Inlet Chinook Sal non Harvest Patterns;
$789. 0 CFEC Receipts

* Repl acenent of Resear ch Vessel Resol uti on
$3,700.0 G-

* Research of Endangered Species Act Candidate
Speci es; $1,550.0 GF

* Boards of Fisheries and Ganme Sound System
Repl acenent; $100.0 G-

e FEradication of Invasive Tunicates in Witing
Har bor; $500.0 GF

Represent ati ve Doogan asked for nore information concerning
t he Commer ci al Fi sheri es Entry Comm ssion's (CFEQ)
contribution to the capital budget.

Comm ssi oner Campbel | said that the projects were
identified on the slide.

Co- Chai r Stoltze questioned how the departnent was
col |l aborating with other departnents on the issue of
i nvasi ve speci es.

3:09:19 PM

Conmi ssi oner Canpbel | answered that the departnent
coordinated closely with DNR She explained that DF&G
focused on invasive species in the marine environnment,
whil e DNR focused mainly on invasive plants.

3:10:15 PM
AT EASE

3:18: 30 PM
RECONVENED

A"BUDGET OVERVI EW DEPARTMENT OF COMVERCE, COWUNITY AND
ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT

3:19:18 PM

SUSAN BELL, COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COVMUNI TY
AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, introduced her support staff and
directed attention to her presentation (copy on file). She
highlighted Slide 2, which detailed the corporate and core

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



agencies of the departnent and noted the departnent's
m ssion: Pronote a healthy economny, strong communities, and
protect consunmers in Al aska.

Comm ssioner Bell said that the distinction was nmade
between corporate and core agencies because of the
i nvol venent of Alaska's citizens in boards and comm ssions
and in recognition of the fact that 50 percent of the
budget request was for corporate support.

Comm ssioner Bell spoke to the departnents’ priority
progranms |isted on Slides 4 and 5:

Priority Prograns

Econom ¢ Grow h
« Division of Econom c Devel opnent, Al DEA and ASM
e Net increase of $15 mllion

e Tourism narketing, AlDEA devel opnent projects
Sust ai nabl e Ener gy

e Alaska Energy Authority
* Net increase of $4 mllon

» Power Cost Equalization, Renewable Energy Fund
grant managenent, Susitna-Watana Hydroel ectric
Proj ect positions, energency generators
Strong Communities

e Community and Regional Affairs, Serve Al aska
e $18.3 million decrease

* Decrenent for one-tinme community revenue sharing
Consuner Protection

« Banking and Securities; |Insurance; Corporations,
Busi ness, and Professional Licensing; Regulatory
Commi ssi on of Al aska

e Net increase $1.5 mllion
e Emerging utility and pipeline issues, CBPL
i ndirect costs and professional board travel

3:24:14 PM

Commi ssioner Bell touched on the overall challenges faced
by the departnent:

e High cost of energy inpacts comunities and
econom ¢ devel opnent efforts

House Fi nance Committee 24 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



Gaps in critical infrastructure such as roads,
ports, communi cations, and processing facilities
Hi gher cost of goods and services in rural areas
Federal regulatory pernmtting delays and denials
Uncertainty hanpering private investnent and
federal funding for rural prograns

Limted awareness in national and international
mar ket s about Al aska products and services

State and regi onal economic activities are spread
across many entities (DCCED, AlIDEA, Internationa
Trade, Natural Resources, Education, and Regi ona
Econom ¢ Associ ati ons)

Hi storical practices and unaddressed audit issues
rel ated to professional and business |icensing
Upward pressure on the utility rate base and
increase in conplex filings wth critical
deadl i nes

Gowh of new financial prograns that increase
fraud and m sinformation for consuners

Recruitnment and retention of specialized staff

3:24:35 PM

Comm ssioner Bell described acconplishnents in econonc

gr owt h:

Di vi sion of Econom c Devel opnent

313 loans totalling $30 mllion

$4.8 mllion Sal non Enhancenent Tax to
aquacul ture
AVSP VI: visitor volune, spending, profiles,

mar keti ng data
Mar keting: tourism mnerals, film

Devel opnent of underutilized seaf ood
speci es/aquatic plants

For est pr oduct opportunities, supply needs,
barriers

Pre-qualified 33 productions, 17 productions
conpleted, referrals

Awar ded $330,000 STEP grant, i ncrease snal

busi ness skills to export to China

3:28:21 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



Comm ssioner Bell continued to Slide 8 of the presentation:
Econom ¢ Devel opnent Prograns (cont)

Al aska I ndustrial Devel opnment and Export Authority
* Increased asset value to over $1 billion
e FY11 37 loan participations, $105 nmillion
* 4 Recovery Zone Facility bonds, $27 mllion

* Ket chi kan shi pyard, Skagway ore term na
expansi ons

e Cook Inlet jack-up rig
« Providence Hospital conduit revenue bond

3:30: 50 PM

Comm ssi oner Bell spoke to Slide 9:
Econom ¢ Devel opnent Progranms (cont)

Al aska Seafood Marketing Institute

 Continued retail, f oodservi ce, uni versity,
cul i nary school programns

e Traditional media exposure through national and
international publicity in newspapers, nagazines,
radi o, TV, and internet

« Expandi ng market reach through fish taco contest,
nmobi | e apps, social nedia

« Mrket analysis and education supporting recent
i ndustry announcenent to shift to sustainability
certification by United Nation's Food and
Agricul ture Organi zation

e Expanded collaboration wth tourism marketing,
new opportunities featuring Al aska G own, Al aska
Rai | road, ot her agencies

3:32:38 PM

Conmi ssi oner Bell continued to Slide 10:
Sust ai nabl e Ener gy

Al aska Energy Authority

e Prelimnary Application Docunent filed with FERC
for the Susitna-Watana Hydroel ectric Project

House Fi nance Conmmittee 26 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



$176.6 million in grants for 207 renewabl e energy
proj ects
Di sbursed $31.8 million in PCE paynents

3 bulk fuel wupgrades (71 of 107 conpleted to
dat e)

4 rural power system upgrades (51 of 110
conpl eted to date)

| ssued 52 bul k fuel revolving | oans
Trained 47 rural residents
Launched Al aska Commerci al Energy Audit Program

3:34:20 PM

Comm ssioner Bell highlighted Slide 11

Strong Conmunities

Community and Regional Affairs

RUBA assisted 208 comunities, 82 communities net
sustainability indicators (5 nore than oprior
year), trained 147 utility managers

$1.4 billion di stributed t hr ough 1, 800
state/federal grants

$29 mllion distributed: PILT, NFR fisheries
busi ness tax, fisheries |anding tax

$80 million Comunity Revenue Sharing

$1.5 mllion to 1,200 SE fishernen

Finalized ANCSA re- conveyance for M nt o,
conpleted 14 land transactions in 8 communities,
conpleted Ninilchik survey and title conveyance

15 Bulk Fuel Bridge Loans (6 less than prior
year)

3:36:49 PM

Conmi ssi oner Bell conti nued:

Strong Communities

Communi ty and Regi onal Affairs (cont)

801 fuel watch calls to community 341 entities
Finalized di gi tal or t hophot o maps in 19
communi ties

Emergency response, Nat i onal Fl ood Insurance
Pr ogram support

House Fi nance Committee 27 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



« Launched new E-grant program comunity database
lien watch

» State assessor, Local Boundary Comm ssion support

Serve Al aska

e 286,195 hours of volunteer service, over $6
mllion val ue

e Meeting critical needs in education, health and
envi r onnent

3:38:52 PM

Conmi ssioner Bell continued to Slide 13:

Consuner Protection
Banki ng and Securities

» 58 exans of depository institutions

e 4,700 nutual fund and investnent trust filings

e 1,289 broker-deal ers registered/ renewed

* 329 security filings/notice filings

e Finalized nulti-state security settlenents, $1.6

mllion in fines and mllions refunded to
Al askans
* New licensing prograns: nortgage |enders and

noney services

 Updat ed ANCSA  proxy regul ati ons, expedi t ed
conpl ai nt process

3:39:43 PM

Comm ssi oner Bell continued to discuss consuner protection:

Cor por ati ons, Business and Professional Licensing

« Mnagenent restructure, conprehensive review of
financial foundation, procedural upgrades, board
engagenent

* |Issued 119,256  conmerci al and pr of essi onal
i censes

* 1,155 conplaints, resulting in 330 new cases

* Increased online renewal s

e Big Gane Commercial Services board investigation
e Corrective actions to historical practices

3:41: 21 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 28 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



Conmmi ssi oner Bell continued:

| nsur ance

« More than 39,000 |icenses issued

e (Opened 77 crimnal investigations, closed 56

* Registered 21 purchasing groups, admtted 20 new
conpanies, 8 surplus lines insurers, 2 risk
retention groups

* Investigated 294 consuner conplaints, closed 259
conpl ai nts, consuners received $356, 000

Regul at ory Conmm ssion of Al aska

* Approved t he first certificate of public
conveni ence and necessity for Cook Inlet natura
gas storage

» Decided over 20 rate proceedings and 475 tariff
pr oceedi ngs

» Concurrent TAPS rate revision hearings with FERC

e Provided assurance that $197 nmillion electrical
pl ant investnent could be recovered in future
rates

3:44: 51 PM
Comm ssioner Bell stated that the consunmer protection

el ement was an inportant indicator for departnental problem
solving. She noted the four program areas on the Slide 16
pie chart, which detailed the percentage of the budget
dedicated to each: Consuner  Protection, 17 percent;
Economic G owh, 31 percent; Strong Conmmunities, 21
percent; Sustainable Energy, 31 percent.

3:46:13 PM

Represent ati ve Doogan probed what the state could expect to
receive for the $4 nmillion increase for tourism marketing.

Comm ssi oner  Bel | replied that it was inportant to
recogni ze that there were big drops in the industry in 2009
and 2010. She said the recovery took a conbination of
increasing the state's visibility through rmarketing,
reducing taxation l|levels on the industry and reaching out
to the industry. She said that an increase of over 50
t housand visitors was anticipated in the 2012 season, wth
anot her 40 thousand in 2013. She stressed that the state
was still on the path to recovery in terms of tota

House Fi nance Conmmittee 29 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



visitation. She added that the seafood and tourism
mar ket i ng progranms stood out nationwide in terns of putting
Al aska on the nmap.

3:48: 52 PM

Representati ve Doogan requested concrete information about
what the state could expect for the $4 nillion. He noted
that the Al aska Seafood Marketing Institute needed an extra
$500,000 in "unrealizable federal receipts.”" He asked if
that was the same as back filling.

Comm ssioner Bell explained that the department had been
nmonitoring the Market Access Program (MAP). She said that
it had been flagged in an attenpt to remenber the bal ance
bet ween industry taxation and the state's contri bution.

3:50: 20 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze pointed out that the tourism industry was
second | argest enployer in the state.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough voiced support for state's energy
policy in trying to reach 50 percent sustainable, renewable
energy. She pointed out that the state had invested $176.6
mllion in grants to 207 renewable energy projects. She
said that she had made a request to the Al aska Energy
Aut hority (AEA) to discuss wind power in order to determ ne
if the presented projects were delivering the energy
prom sed. She shared that the production was not neeting
the investnent. She expressed concern that maintenance on
wi nd turbines was heavier than what had been proposed. She
gqueried the return of energy versus the anpbunt that the
state had invested in the projects.

Comm ssioner Bell comented that the AEA estimated that by
2013, 10 mllion gallons of diesel would be saved annually.
She said that the departnment had requested additional
resident cost saving information from AEA. She added that
the electrical generation from renewable resources was
anticipated to be at 23 percent by 2025, and not the
previously estimation of 50 percent.

3:53:55 PM

Vice-chair Fairclough stated that she was specifically
seeking the conmponents of the renewable and sustainable
energy streans. She noted that the state had inproved air-

House Fi nance Conmmittee 30 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



gquality by reducing diesel consunption, but wanted to know
specifically which projects were "w nning."

3:55:51 PM

Representative Edgnon thought that HB 152 had created a
bunch of tiny increnental projects throughout the state
t hat woul d make renewabl e energy nore successful.

Co-Chair Thomas interjected that several projects had been
built throughout the state that had significantly inproved
comunity's dependence on diesel.

Representative Gara asked what coordination was being done
to ensure over the long-term that localities had trained
people within the communities for naintenance. He wondered
why the departnent's general fund budget had increased by
20 percent.

3:57:52 PM

Comm ssioner Bell answered that the tourismincrenent was a
significant conponent; it had been in the capital budget in
FY2012, and the $16 nmillion was now in the operating
budget .

Representative Gara understood that the $16 nmillion noved
from the capital to the operating budget. He nentioned the
50/ 50 match between the state and the industry for tourism
marketing. He asked where the $4 mllion dollar increase
put the state in terns of the 50/50 match. Additionally,
wondered if the state had been active in advertising its
ski resorts on a national |evel

Comm ssioner Bell explained that the industry generated
approximately $2.7 mllion in toward the 50/50 match. She
said that the departnment's public relations program had
hi ghlighted the winter skiing in the state.

4:00: 28 PM

Co- Chair Thomas recogni zed the forthcomng fiscal notes for
the conmmttee substitute for HB 282.

4:01:12 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 31 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



Co-Chair Thomas noted that oil was declining and the
budgets were gaining which would put the state in a deficit
within the next two years. He urged the departnent's to
refrain fromover spending.

#
ADJ OURNIVENT

4:01: 59 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 4:02 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 32 01/30/12 1:33 P. M



